From: Nick Bancks

To: Joe Pavelko; Mark Johnson

Subject: Conveyance of Interest on OHF acquisition in SEMN
Date: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 10:56:04 AM

Joe & Mark,

I ran into an issue with a property recently purchased with OHF dollars as | was preparing to
convey to DNR Forestry where it appears that | will need to convey a small portion of land to a
LGU to avoid a potential claim of adverse possession. Here’s a summary of this issue and my
conversations with DNR to date:

TPL purchased ~257 acres of property in Fillmore County in January 2024 as an addition to
adjacent State Forest lands. In addition to State lands the property is also adjacent to the City
of Rushford’s municipal airport, a portion of which is fenced and shares a boundary with the
TPL-purchased property. During the process of acquisition | went through normal due
diligence to clean up title to prepare to convey to the State, which included a survey of the
entire property. The surveyor found that the airport fence line is off at multiple locations along
the shared boundary and encroaches onto the TPL property, but at most for a distance of 0.7
of a foot, and at least, 0.1 of a foot. | asked him to calculate the amount of land we’re talking
about that the airport fence line encroaches onto TPL-owned property and it was ~478 sq. ft.

I’ve included an exhibit map of the airport fence line that shows the locations and distance
where the fence is off. A note about the map, if the distance is listed to the inside of the fence
that is where the fence comes back onto City property from the surveyed boundary, but if the
distance is on the outside that is where the fence deviates onto TPL property. I’'ve also
included the surveyor’s email acknowledging that the potential margin of error in their
standard surveying methods could account for most if not all the discrepancies so you can
see how minute the amount is we’re discussing here.

This fence line discrepancy was so small so as not even to be listed on the survey, however it
was a note in the survey field notes shared with DNR. In order to accept title and property DNR
was requiring the City of Rushford sign off on a boundary affidavit to acknowledge the fence
line discrepancy. Initially, | made this request to the City and they indicated in both writing and
verbally that they would proceed with signing the affidavit. | then proceeded to closing on the
property, with the intent to file and record the affidavit prior to conveyance to DNR. However,
due to concerns with the affidavit potentially affecting federal funding for the airport the City
reneged on signing the affidavit after | had acquired the property. They made this decisionin a
city council meeting which was recorded in the local newspaper. | then asked DNR if they
would proceed with an acceptance of risk given that the area is so small (478 sq. ft.) so as not
to even present an issue as far as use and ownership is concerned, however DNR is not willing
to take the property without either quit claiming that small portion to the City, or granting the
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[External]  Fence line encroachment exhibit

		From

		Aaron Mages

		To

		Nick Bancks

		Recipients

		Nick.Bancks@tpl.org



CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.



Hi Nick,



We measure the total area of property inside the fence line that falls on the TPL property to be 478 square feet. I have highlighted in yellow on the attached exhibit the sections of fence that appear to be on the TPL property. 



 



Keep in mind that when locating the fence line, our surveyor and survey rod were on the outside of the fence, so our measurements are to the outside of the fence, and the center of the fence may be closer to the airport property. If our exhibit shows the fence line being  0.1’ onto the TPL property there is a high likelihood that the center of the fence line is on the property line.



 



Let me know if you have any questions.



 



Thanks,



 



Aaron



 



 



Aaron Mages, L.S.



Survey Manager



 



Stonebrooke Engineering, Inc.



12279 Nicollet Avenue, Burnsville, MN 55337



Direct: 952.540.4845    Main: 952.402.9202



stonebrookeengineering.com



 



 







 



 



 



  _____  


CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.  THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS ELECTRONIC MAIL TRANSMISSION MAY CONTAIN PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATIONS AND / OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE NAMED RECIPIENT(S).  ALL ATTACHMENTS AND ELECTRONIC DATA TRANSMITTED IS FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF STONEBROOKE ENGINEERING, INC.  NO LICENSE FOR USE IS GIVEN BY STONEBROOKE ENGINEERING, INC. BY TRANSMISSION OF THIS DATA.  ALL WARRANTIES THAT MAY BE EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WITH THE TRANSMISSION OF THIS DATA, OR THE DATA ITSELF, ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED BY STONEBROOKE ENGINEERING, INC.  THE ELECTRONIC DATA ATTACHED TO THIS TRANSMISSION IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AND UPDATES ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE RECIPIENT. 
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Caledonia City Council
Approves New Tasers
and Body Cameras

BY CHARLENE CORSON SELBEE

charlene@fillmorecountyjournal.com

The Caledonia City Council
unanimously approved the pur-
chase of tasers, body cameras,
and police car cameras for the
city’s police department at its
regularly scheduled city council
meeting on Monday, April 22.

The city was presented with
a quote of $130,108.70 from
Axon Enterprise, Inc. payable

existing tasers are out of service
and no longer maintained by the
vendor.” Additionally, he noted
that the Houston County Sher-
iffs Office has already upgraded
their tasers through Axon Enter-
prises and acquired body cam-
eras for their deputies. Essen-
tially, the contract is a five-year
maintenance agreement with
equipment replacement sched-
uled after two years and again at
the end of the five-year contract.





An impressive 140-year-old mﬂﬁurma.-nn— Wagon C

BY KIRSTEN ZOELLNER

kirsten @mmiexmeaxga:wgs com

At the Monday, April 22 meet-
ing, the Rushford Council dis-
cussed at length a request from the
Department of Natural Resources
to sign off on survey results they
conducted. The land, now held
privately, is being sold to a land
conservancy which will transfer
the ownership and management
of the land to the State of Min-
nesota/DNR. The land abuts the
Rushford Municipal Airport.

“The DNR is getting a bunch of
land from an estate and they did
their survey which shows one fence
post is off an inch, another fence-
post might be off three-quarters of
an inch. Ifs miniscule,” explained

City Cletk Kathy Zacher.

“That's not acceptable,” said
Councilor Jim O’Donnell.

“It’s crazy. They want us to sign
off. We can’t do that,” continued
Zacher. “The FAA (Federal Avia-
tion Administration) and people
that give us money want to know
that we are not giving away even
an inch of land that belongs to the
airport.”

“You're looking for a degree of
wrongness or rightness?” asked
O’Donnell.

“A degree of accuracy,” stated
Benson.

Further discussion revealed that
the property line pins are not in
dispute and each location where
a fencepost is off, of which many
were noted, is mere inches. The
fenceline has been in the deeply
wooded area for more than 40

ompany wagon was

Rushford Area Historical Society. Sitting atop is Rushford Mayor Terri Benson.

restored n.b& donated to ﬂ.rn

Photo submitted
years. City Attorney Mike Fla-
herty, Flaherty/Hood, PA., and

City Airport Engineer Matt Wag-
ner, Mead & Hunt, advised the
city against signing the document.
Instead, the only way to prove the
accuracy of the city’s property is a
survey. The cost is $8,981.

“So, who's settling it?” asked
Councilor Leigh Volkmann. “If
the DNR did a survey and we do a
survey and there’s a dispure, it’s not
over. You can’t override the DNR.”

Zacher felt a city survey would
supersede the DNR survey because
the city survey is based on what
the FAA and the state say. The city
plans to survey the airport prop-
erty in 2025 as part of its updated
Airport Operations Plan. There’s

See RUSHFORD Page 2 »

$52,043.48 will be covered by
the $124,000 in public safe-
ty aid received from the state
in late 2023 which remains
unspent. The payments in years

three, four and five would need
to be budgeted for. City Clerk/
Administrator Jake Dickson
clarified in the staff report, “The

ing at 6 p.m. and led his col-
leagues and visitors in the Pledge
of Allegiance. Council mem-
bers Robert (Bob) Klug, Mayor
Schroeder, David Fitzpatrick,
and Ryan Stenzel were present.
Amanda Ninneman was absent.

See CALEDONIA Page 6 >

Chatfield Applies for Workforce
Housing Development Grant

BY KAREN REISNER

karen@fillmorecountyjournal.com

At the April 22 meeting of
the Chatfield City Council,
EDA coordinator, Chris Giesen
explained the state of Minnesota
has a competitive grant program
that will award up to $39 mil-
lion to worlforce rental housing
projects in greater Minnesota.
Councilor Josh Broadwater was
absent from the meeting.

If the grant is awarded, the pro-
gram could provide a $475,000
deferred forgivable loan to help
with development of worlforce
rental units. The city has com-

mitted $410,000 in TIF for the

Grand Street Apartment project
owned by Main Street Proper-
ties, LLP The project aims to
construct 14 market rate rental
units on Grand St. The project is
ready to go but has been held up
due to financing concerns.

A resolution authorizing the
application for a Workforce
Housing Development Program
was approved as recommended
by the EDA.

Dental Office

Giesen explained Dr. Bryson
and Rebekah Rushing of Roch-
ester have made a request for
an EDA loan in the amount of

See CHATFIELD Page 5 >
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no guarantee that if surveying is
done now, the FAA will accept it as
the official survey for the plan, and
another may need to be ordered
again in a year.

“The property line is still the
property line,” stressed O’ Donnell.

“We should not sign away a
potential of land even if it is six
inches here or there. We should
not just do so because the DNR
asks us, too,” added Zacher, refer-
ring to the attorney and engineer’s
reasonings.

Without the city signing the
document or surveying the prop-
erty, the DNR claims the estate
can’t convey the land through sale.
“That's on them, not us. As 2
taxpayer, I don't see why 1 would
pay if they can't convey the land
the way it is,” added Volkman.
“If the DNR says it needs to
be done, they can pick up the
cost. Nobody's disputed this in 40
years.”

The council agreed it wasn't nec-
essary to sign the document of
survey the property.

In other news, the city is imme-
diately ceasing the Public Access
Channel and amending the fran-
chise Public, Educational, and
Government (PEG) agreement
with MediaCom and Acentek.

“Long story short, the equip-
ment is not staying in good work-
ing order. Ifs a fairly expensive
option to upgrade it noted
Benson. In addition, the Rushford
Peterson School District has told
the city it does not want the equip-

_ ment kept on-site due to tighten-

FILLMORE COUNTY JOURNAL

nological equipment and liability
issues.

“wWith the advent of live stream-
ing, the local access channel is not
a thing that people use anymore,”
added O’Donnell.

There may be options for parts
of the equipment o find a sec-
ond life, but it’s outdated and not
functioning as designed. The city
will recycle the equipment unless
the parts have some value. The
city has taken in $64,000 in the
PEG Fund since its creation, but
only a portion comes from PEG
franchise fees.

The council also unanimously
mmwnoﬁa expending $1,400/year,
once a month, for rodent con-
trol at the former Farmers Win
site downtown. Measures would
include interior and exterior, simi-
lar to what was used when the
elevator was operational.

The council asked if a site walk-
through was done to see what
was inside. While some had been
inside when it was for sale, it’s
been sitting empty since the com-
pany vacated the site in 2019-
2020.

“There’s lots of stuff in there.
If you're thinking about cleaning
that out... uff da... that’s a nasty
job,” exclaimed O'Donnell.

“I¢s not good,” added Coun-
cilor Andrew Linder.

There is old feed, which could
be moldy, and there are currently
no lights on site. There was a
suggestion the city utilize Sen-
tenced to Serve (STS) to clean out
the site, but Zacher noted there
are stringent rules for STS about
safety.

Monday, April 29, 2024

Bike Tralil

HARMONY, MN — The Har-
mony Economic Development
Authority (EDA) is pleased
to announce a golden shovel
groundbreaking ceremony to
celebrate the start of construc-
tion extending the Harmony-
Preston Valley state bike trail.
The event will take place at 3
p.m. on Friday, May 3, 2024,
in Harmony, Minn. A recep-
tion will follow the ground-
breaking, in the warehouse at
Harmony Spirits, 40 1st Ave.
NW. Harmony is excited to see
the launch of this project which
has been 35 years in the making.
Harmony Irail Commission
volunteers have been working to
see this day since 1989 when it
began it’s work to connect Har-
mony to southeast Minnesota’s
state trail network.

The new Stateline Trail will
extend from Harmony’s south-
ern city limit to the Iowa stateli-
ne, with a spur to Niagara Cave
in southern Fillmore County.
Construction will ~continue
throughout the rest of 2024
and is anticipated to be fin-
ished in 2025. The project has
received nearly $6 million in
federal, state, and local funding
including $5.5 million from the
State of Minnesota, $235,000
from the Minnesota Environ-
ment and Natural Resources
Trust Fund, and $15,000 from
the Harmony Area Community
Foundation.

The Stateline Trail was only

Call the FCJ at 507-765-2151 to advertise or offer news tips!

Construction Begins on the Harmony Stateline

and north to destinations such
as Preston, Lanesboro, Rushford
via Minnesotas Bluffland Trails
System. Eventually, plans call
for this trail network to con-
nect through Chatfield, Minn.,
to the local and state trails in
Rochester to the north and east-
ward across the Mississippi to La
Crosse, Wis. Harmony couldn’
be more excited to take this next
big step in creating a regional
interstate trail network.

The existing trail between
Harmony and Preston was com-
pleted in 1998, which goes on
to connect o Lanesboro, Minn.,
and the rest of the current Bluf-
fand Trails system along the
Root River. Legislation was
secured in 2015 to authorize the
new Stateline Trail and a series
of state funding was secured in
7018 and 2023 to make con-
struction possible. The Harmo-
ny Trail Commission will next
set its sights on constructing a
crail connection east to the city
of Canton, Minn.

A special thank you to the
Harmony Area Chamber of
Commerce for their assistance
in organizing this celebration.

Partial funding for this project

was provided by the Minne-
sota Environment and Natural
Resources Trust Fund as recom-
mended by the Legislative-Citi-
sen Commission on Minnesota
Resources (LCCMR). The Trust
Fund is a permanent fund con-
stitutionally established by the
citizens of Minnesota to assist
in the protection, conservation,

‘@nawnnéao:, and enhancement

of the state’s air, water, land,
fish, wildlife, and other natural
resources. Currently 40% of net
Minnesota State Lottery pro-
ceeds are dedicated to grow-
ing the Trust Fund and ensur-
ing future benefits for Minne-
sota’s environment and natural
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City an easement. DNR’s contention is that because this is a known encroachment, and
because it was publicly acknowledged in a city council meeting with a reporter putting it in
newspaper article that this would essentially create a precedent they don’t want to set (and
cannot due to state statute). The newspaper article is the last attachment.

Because of DNR’s stance and the City’s resistance to the boundary affidavit it looks like a quit
claim deed conveying the 478 sq. ft. to the City is the path of least resistance in order to get
DNR to accept the property and get it into public ownership, where it should be. Because of
the NOFR do | need to make the request to council to release the 478 sq. ft., oris there an
alternative path forward?

Nick Bancks

Project Manager | Trust for Public Land
nick.bancks@tpl.org

651-621-0789

www.tpl.org
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